
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
11.00 AM (OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE CABINET, WHICHEVER IS THE LATER) 
COMMITTEE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Richard Stogdon (Chair)  

Councillors Colin Belsey, Godfrey Daniel, Laurie Loe, Ruth O'Keeffe, 
Barry Taylor and David Tutt 
 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1   Minutes of meeting held on 23 April 2019  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Apologies for absence   

 
3   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

4   Urgent Items   
Notification of any items which the Chair considers urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda 
 

5   Amendment to Local Standards Framework  (Pages 5 - 12) 
Report by Assistant Chief Executive 
 

6   Any other items considered urgent by the Chair   
 

 
 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent  
LEWES BN7 1UE 4 November 2019 
 
Contact Andy Cottell, 01273 481955,  
Email: andy.cottell@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Standards Committee held at Committee Room, County Hall, 
Lewes on 23 April 2019. 
 

 
PRESENT  Councillors Martin Clarke, Godfrey Daniel, Ruth O'Keeffe, Barry Taylor and 
David Tutt 
 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 
1.1          It was RESOLVED that Councillor O’Keeffe be elected as Chair for  the meeting. 
 
2 MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 24 APRIL 2018  
 
2.1 It was RESOLVED to agree the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 24 
April 2018 as a correct record. 
 
3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
3.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Belsey and Stogdon. It was noted 
that Councillor Martin Clarke was substituting for Councillor Belsey. 
 
4 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS - PROPOSED AMENDMENTS  
 
4.1 The Committee considered a report by the Assistant Chief Executive regarding proposed 
amendments to the Code of Conduct for Members. 
 
4.2 It was RESOLVED to:  
 

1) note the proposed amendments to the Code of Conduct and agree that no  
amendments other than those proposed would be suggested at this time; and 

 
2) recommend the County Council to agree the amendments to the Code of Conduct for 

Members as set out in Appendix 2 of the report 
 
5 ANNUAL REPORT  
 
5.1 The Committee considered a report by the Assistant Chief Executive that provided an 
update in relation to Member conduct issues and the work of the Standards Committee.  
 
5.2 It was RESOLVED to: 
 

1) note the report; and 
 

2) agree the report for submission to the County Council for consideration  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: Standards Committee 

Date of meeting: 12 November 2019 

By: Assistant Chief Executive  

Title: Amendment to Local Standards Framework 

Purpose: To consider proposed amendments to the local assessment of 
complaints about Member conduct. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Standards Committee is recommended to: 

 
1) agree that where an Investigating Officer has completed a report in relation to an 

allegation of misconduct by a member, and that report concludes that there is 
evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, authority is delegated to 
the Monitoring Officer to refer the matter for local hearing before the Standards 
Committee or a Hearings Sub-Committee; 

2) adopt the Hearings Procedure in relation to alleged breaches of the Code of Code  
by Members as set out in Appendix 1 to this report; and  

3) delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to make the necessary amendments to 
the Constitution to give effect to the decision.  

 

1 Background Information 

1.1 Under the current Local Standards Framework, a report by an Investigating Officer 
regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct by a councillor has to be considered by the 
Standards Committee or a Sub-Committee. The body considering the report has to make one of 
the following findings: 

- That it accepts a finding of no failure (ie that the Subject Member has not breached the 
Code); or 

- That the matter should be considered at a hearing of the Standards Committee or a 
Hearings Sub-Committee. 

1.2 This process adds an additional unnecessary administrative layer which potentially results 
in delay in considering the complaint. It is therefore proposed that where an Investigating Officer 
concludes that there is evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, authority is 
delegated to the Monitoring Officer to refer the matter straight to the Standards Committee or a 
Hearings Sub-Committee. This proposal will remove the need for a meeting of councillors to refer 
the matter to Hearing Sub-Committee and bring the County Council process in line with the 
procedure adopted by a number of other authorities.  

1.3 Where a hearing is necessary it is good practice to have an agreed process and it is 
recommended that the procedure attached at Appendix 1 is adopted. 

2.  Conclusion 

2.1 The proposed changes set out in the report are considered necessary to ensure 
transparency, and in order to streamline the process for considering reports from an Investigating 
Officer in which the officer concludes that, there is evidence of a breach of the Code of Conduct.  
A more comprehensive review of the Local Standards Framework process will be undertaken in 
the coming months and any proposed changes will be reported to a future meeting  

PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive 

Contact Officer: Andy Cottell 
Tel. No. 01273 481955 
Email: andy.cottell@eastsussex.gov.uk  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

mailto:andy.cottell@eastsussex.gov.uk


LOCAL MEMBERS 

ALL 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

 

Page 6



Appendix 1 

Hearings Procedure 

The following process will be followed when a decision has been taken that a 
hearing, as to whether a Member has breached the code of conduct, is required. 

Pre­hearing process  
The Monitoring Officer will, where possible, arrange for the Standards 
Committee/Hearing Sub-Committee to meet to hear the complaint within 3 
months of receiving the Investigating Officer’s report. The Monitoring Officer 
should aim to arrange a hearing which can take place in one day or 
consecutive days without the need to have gaps between sittings or lengthy 
days. 

The Standards Committee and the Hearings Sub-Committee are subject to the 
normal requirements on confidential and exempt information as any other 
Committee under ss100 A to K and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. The Monitoring Officer will consider whether these provisions apply in 
advance of the hearing. 

The Monitoring Officer will require the Subject Member to give his/her 
response to the Investigating Officer’s report in order to identify what is likely 
to be agreed and what is likely to be in contention at the hearing. This may, 
at the discretion of the Monitoring Officer, take the form of a pre-hearing 
questionnaire. 

If the Subject Member wishes to rely on evidence, including witnesses, at the 
hearing, they should provide the evidence and names of any witnesses, to the 
Monitoring Officer as soon as possible. The Investigating Officer may have taken 
a witness statement from them or set out their comments in their report but if the 
Subject Member wishes to add to what the Investigating Officer has written they 
should provide a witness statement to the Monitoring Officer as soon as possible. 

The Committee/Sub-Committee will not allow new arguments or 
evidence to be presented at the hearing. 

The Monitoring Officer will decide what evidence will need to be heard, and 
what written evidence can be read at the hearing. The Monitoring Officer 
should take account of the views of the witnesses and the Subject Member in 
reaching such decisions. 

The Monitoring Officer can consult the Chair of the Committee if he/she feels 
their guidance would assist and ask the Chair to issue directions in relation to 
the pre­hearing process. 
 

The Monitoring Officer may wish to offer to cover the expenses of 
witnesses associated with their attendance at the hearing. 

Page 7



The Monitoring Officer will consider whether it is appropriate to hear two 
complaints together, for example if they relate to the same Member, or 
relate to the same incident or occasion. 

The Subject Member should be provided with the Investigating Officer’s 
report and any evidence which will be heard at the hearing. 

The Monitoring Officer should provide the members of the Committee/Sub-
Committee with all the evidence in advance of the hearing so that they can 
read it to identify any potential conflicts of interest. 

The Monitoring Officer will provide the Committee/Sub-Committee with a 
report which summarises the allegation. This should include a list of agreed 
facts and disputed issues and outline the proposed procedure for the hearing. 

The Monitoring Officer will act as a point of contact for the Subject Member, the 
complainant, the Independent Person and any witnesses who will give evidence. 

The Hearing  

An Independent Person will be invited to attend the hearing and may be asked to 
comment if the Committee/Sub-Committee thinks it is appropriate.  

If the Subject Member does not attend the hearing, the Committee/Sub-
Committee may adjourn the hearing or may continue to reach a decision on 
the basis of the Investigating Officer’s report and any evidence they hear, if 
they decide to hear evidence. 

Whilst the hearing is a meeting of the authority, it is not a court of law. It does 
not hear evidence under oath. The rules of natural justice should nevertheless 
be followed and the Committee/Sub-Committee will have due regard to the 
seriousness of the proceedings for those involved, the Council and the public. 

The Committee/Sub-Committee will decide disputed issues and whether 
the Subject Member has breached the code on the balance of 
probabilities. 

Representation   
 
The Subject Member may choose to be represented by any person they wish. 
They will have to bear any cost of being represented. The Committee/Sub-
Committee may refuse to allow a representative to remain at the hearing if they 
are disruptive. The Committee/Sub-Committee will have the discretion to hear 
opening or closing arguments from the Subject Member and the Investigating 
Officer if they feel it would assist them in reaching a decision. 

 

 

Page 8



Evidence   
 
The Committee/Sub-Committee will control the procedure and evidence 
presented at a hearing, including the number of witnesses and the way they 
are questioned. All matters relating to the evidence and procedure are within 
their discretion. 

Generally the Subject Member is entitled to present their case as they see fit. 

The Committee/Sub-Committee will usually have regard to submissions 
from the Subject Member if they are considering whether to hear particular 
evidence. 

Witnesses of facts that are disputed would normally be expected to attend to 
be questioned. Character witnesses will normally provide written evidence 
which can be read at the hearing. 

Witnesses should be treated with courtesy throughout the pre­hearing stage 
and at the hearing. 

Witnesses may be questioned by the Committee/Sub-Committee, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Subject Member. This discretion should 
generally be unfettered by the Committee/Sub-Committee unless there is 
good reason to do so. 

The onus is on the Subject Member to ensure the attendance of witnesses 
who they would like to give evidence to assist them. The Committee/Sub-
Committee can limit the number of witnesses or the issues which can be 
covered by them. 

Neither the Committee/Sub-Committee nor the Subject Member will 
have any power to compel witnesses to give evidence. 

At the Hearing  
 
At the hearing, the Investigating Officer will present his/her report, call such 
witnesses as he/she considers necessary and make representations to 
substantiate his/her conclusion that the Member has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct.  The Investigating Officer may be asked about their report or 
any matters relating to their involvement. 

Role of Monitoring Officer 
 
References to the Monitoring Officer should be read to include any 
representative of the Monitoring Officer. 

The Monitoring Officer has a key role in ensuring the smooth running of the 
pre­hearing and hearing process. They will remain neutral throughout and will 
provide independent advice to the Committee/Sub-Committee 

Page 9



 

Role of the complainant 

 
The role of the complainant will usually be limited to being a witness and they 
are not a party to the proceedings. However, the Committee/Sub-Committee 
may wish to consult them at any stage in the hearing if they feel their 
comments would assist them. 

Decision   
 
The Committee/Sub-Committee must consult the Independent Person in reaching 
their decision. 

The Committee/Sub-Committee may wish to retire to consider their decision. 
The Monitoring Officer may assist them in constructing the reasons for their 
decision. The Monitoring Officer will not express any view on the evidence 
heard or the decision to be reached. 

The Committee/Sub-Committee will reach a decision as to whether the Subject 
Member has breached the code of conduct. If they decide that the Subject 
Member has not breached the code of conduct they will take no further action. 
If they decide that the Subject Member has breached the code of conduct they 
should go on to decide what sanction, if any, is appropriate. 

Sanctions   
The Committee/Sub-Committee must consult the Independent Person before 
imposing any sanction and give the Subject Member the opportunity to make 
representations. 

The Committee/Sub-Committee should consider all the mitigating and 
aggravating circumstances that appear to them to be relevant. For example, 
they may wish to consider: 

 What were the actual and potential consequences of the breach? 

 How serious was the breach? 

 What is the attitude of the Subject Member now? Have they apologised? 

 Has the Subject Member previously been dealt with for a breach of 
the code? 

The following are example of mitigating and aggravating factors but these 
lists should not be regarded as exhaustive. 

Mitigating Factors 

 An honest but mistaken belief that the action was not a breach of the code 

 A previous record of good service 

 Evidence that they were suffering from ill health at the time of the breach 

 

Page 10



Aggravating Factors 

 Dishonesty 

 Continuing to deny the facts or blaming other people 

 Evidence of a failure to follow advice or warnings 

The priority of the Committee/Sub-Committee should be to ensure that there 
are no further breaches of the code and that public confidence is maintained. 

Sanctions   
The sanctions available to the Committee/Sub-Committee are: 

 Publish its findings in respect of the Member’s conduct, 

 Write a formal letter to the councillor found to have breached the code, 

 Report its findings to Council for information, 

 Seek formal censure of the Subject Member, 

 Recommend to the Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un­grouped 
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be 
removed from any or all Committees or Sub­Committees of the Council, 

 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed 
from the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities, 

 Recommend that the Member is removed from outside body 
appointments to which they have been appointed or nominated by the 
Council or the Executive, 

 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to arrange training, mediation or 
other appropriate remedy, for the Member including an apology in 
a form specified by the Committee/Sub-Committee. 

Notice of decision  

As soon as is reasonably practicable after the hearing, the Monitoring Officer 
shall prepare a formal decision notice in consultation with the Chair of the 
Committee/Sub-Committee, and send a copy to the complainant, the Subject 
Member, make that decision notice available for public inspection  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting held on 23 April 2019
	5 Amendment to Local Standards Framework
	Item 5 - Appendix


